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Independent Auditor’s Report

To,
The Members of LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) Financial Statements

We have audited accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of LUMINA
DATAMATICS LIMITED (‘the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2018 and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) and Cash
Flow Statement and the statement for changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Standalone Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the Accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts ang tie

disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depga¥

the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemef t ‘
v J

Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making th#¢e Ml
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assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid the Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial
position) as at March 31, 2018, and its total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and
other comprehensive income), its cash flow and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Emphasis of matter

The Company has an investment of Rs. 5 lacs in equity shares and Rs. 495 lacs in preference
shares in one of its wholly owned subsidiary as at March 31, 2018. The net worth of this
subsidiary has been eroded. We are given to understand that, these investments are for long
term and of strategic matter and the management is confident of turning around the subsidiary in
the near future. In view of this, we are unable to comment on whether provision if any, for the
impairment in the value of investments is required to be made. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2016 included in these Standalone Ind AS
financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared
in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. For the year ended
March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 on which we and the previous auditor, respectively
expressed an unmodified opinion vide audit report dated May 23, 2017 and May 19, 2016
respectively on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting
principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in ‘Annexure A’, a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the afgess
Standalone Ind As financial statements. 3
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b)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Standalone Ind As financial statements have been kept by the Company so far
as appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the Standalone Ind As financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, read with
rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 31,
2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements (Refer Note No.34 to the
standalone Ind AS financial statement).

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-Term
contracts including derivatives contracts.

ii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2018.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 104746W/W100096

Qo

Arati Parmar
Partner
Membership No: 102888

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2018
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1(f) of ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
Report of even date on the accounts of LUMINA DATAMATICS LIMITED for the year ended
March 31, 2018

i (a) The Company is generally maintaining proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for
physical verification of all fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed during
the year.

(¢) The Company does not have immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land and
building and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

ii. ~ The Company’s nature of operations does not require it to hold inventories. Consequently,
clause 3(ii) of the order is not applicable.

iii. As informed to us, the Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, and limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Hence sub clauses (a) & (b) of clause 3(iii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. According to information and explanation provided to us in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185
and 186 of the companies Act, 2013.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified
and therefore clause (v) is not applicable.

Vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales
tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise duty, value added tax, cess, Goods &
Service Tax and any other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed arrears of statutory dues were
outstanding as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) As informed to us, there were no disputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, GST, Custom Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues in arrears, as at March 31, 2018 except the disputed statutory

dues aggregating Rs. 1158.45 lacs pending before the appropriate authorities which are
as under:
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Sr. Name of the Nature of the Forum where the dues is pending Rs in lacs
No. Statute dues
Income Tax Income Tax Deputy Commissioner of Income 11.37
Act, 1961 Tax (A.Y.2010-11)
Income Tax Income Tax Deputy Commissioner of Income 1077.80
Act, 1961 Tax (AY. 2014-15)
Service Tax Service Tax Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, 69.28
Rules, 1994 Chennai (A. Y. 2011-12)
Total 1158.45

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and explanation
given to us, the Company does not have any long term borrowing and therefore clause (viii)
is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue/ further offer including debt
instruments. Also the company has not taken any term loans during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us,
no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial
remuneration paid or provided by the Company is in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the nature of
the activities of the company does not attract any special statue applicable to Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the company

According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sec
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

The Company has made preferential allotment of equity shares during the year in accordance
with the requirements of the Act and the funds raised have been utilized for the purposes for
which the funds were raised.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on
our examination of the records of the Company during the year the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him and hence
clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xvi. ~ The company is not required to be registered under Sec 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration No: 104746W/W100096
Arati Parmar

Partner
Membership No: 102888

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2018
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ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lumina Datamatics
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
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principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No: 104746W/W100096

R d

Arati Parmar
Partner
Membership No: 102888

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2018




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Standalone balance sheet as at (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Note March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 732.49 447.15 581.12
Capital work-in-progress 2 395.89 47.43 -
Other intangible assets 3 263.81 97.82 151.85
Financial assets
i. Investments 4 18,261.43 18,131.13 17,697.09
ii. Other financial assets 5 242.73 341.84 248.13
Deferred tax asscts 26(c) 137.93 274.86 267.13
Non-cuirsut Tax assets 154.09 - -
Other non-current assets ¥ 588.21 381.79 387.46
Total non-current assets 20,776.58 19,722.02 19,332.78
Curient assers
Financial assets
i. Investments 7 277.13 817.32 3,432.01
il. Trade teceivables 8 969.28 815.94 480.52
1. Cash and cash equivalents 9 362.36 54993 43543
iv. Other financial assets 10 390.08 231.45 111.18
Other current assets 11 95.48 68.05 33.11
Total current assets 2,994.33 2,482.69 4,492.25
Total assets 22,870.91 22,204.71 23,825.03
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
FEquity share capital 13(a) 1,022.87 1,002.87 22.29
Other equity 13(b) 18,747.27 17.905.02 22,337.80
‘Total equity 19,770.14 18,907.89 22,360.09
LIARILITIES
Non-curient liabilities
Financial liabilities
1. Borrowings 13 1,626.16 2,084.87 -
Provisions 14 42217 353.91 309.81
F'otal non-current liabilities 2,048.33 2,438.78 309.81
Current liabilities
Financial habilities
1. Borrowings 15 - - 662.50
i, Trade payables 16 75772 614.61 260.59
i1, Other financial liabilities 17 110.11 12.88 17.55
Provisions 12 61.80 50.46 112.93
Current Tax lizbilities - 60.78& 2589
Other current fiabilities 19 122.81 116.31 75.67
Total current liabilities 1,082,44 858.04 1,155.13
Total liavilities 3.100,77 3,296.82 1,464.94
‘Total cqquity and liabilities 22,870.51 22,204.71 =3,825.03

The accompanying netes forming an integral pait of the tinancial 145
staiements

As per our attached report of ever. date For and on bghalf of the Board
For Kanu Doski Associates LLP .

Chartered Aceountants

Firm Registration No. 104746 W/W 100095 \i \J g iﬁmq ,

" Vidur V Bhogilal Dr. Lalit S. Kanodia
Viee Chairman DIN 000080s6
DIN- 00008036 Chairman

Arati Parmar
Partner
Membership No. 102838

Ashisht Jamn /— | \/0))')'%

Chief Financial Ciiicer Vauita Naik
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 29, 2018




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Note March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 20 10,839.18 10,264.58
Other income 21 471.73 97.38
Total income 11,310.91 10,361.96
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 22 7,340.81 6,334.14
Finance costs 23 41.28 4.08
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 290.98 304.58
Other expenses 25 2,720.76 2,451.12
Total expenses 10,393.83 9,093.92
Profit before exceptional items and tax 917.08 1,268.04
Exceptional items -
Profit before tax 917.08 1,268.04
Tax expense

- Current tax 26(a) 110.15 466.30

- Deferred tax 26(a) 164.13 (78.37)
Total tax expenses 274.28 387.93
Profit for the year 642.80 880.11

Standalone statement of other comprehensive income for the year period ended March 31, 2018

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Note March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Deferred gains/ losses on cash flow hedge (44.54) 238.84
Tax relating to above 12.39 (82.66)
32.15) 156.18
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Acturial Valuation Gain/(Loss) (53.23) (34.75)
Tax relating to above 14.81 12.03
(38.42) (22.72)
OCI for the year (70.57) 133.46
Total comprehensive income for the year 572.24 1,013.56
Earnings per Equity Share (of Rs. 10 each) 32
Basic (Rs.) 6.39 8.78
Diluted (Rs.) 6:12 841
The accompanying notes forming an integral part of the financial statements
1-45
As per our attached report of even date For and on pehalf of the Board
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants ' \ Z\M
Firm Registration No. 104746 VA @W Ly e
- Vidur V Bhogilal Dr. Lalit S. Kanodia
M Vice Chairman Chairman
\ DIN: 00008036 DIN 00008050

Arati Parmar
Partner
Membership No. 102888

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 29, 2018

Vanita Naik
Company Secretary

Ashish Jain
Chief Financial Officer
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Lumina Datamatics Limited

Standalone Cash flow stat t for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Rs. in Lacs)
Mar'18 Mar'17
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 917.08 1,268.04
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and amortization 290.98 304.58
Loss on sale of fixed assets, net 095 448
Expected Credit loss (294.81) (128.87)
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 26.37 (53.12)
Interest expense 41.28 4.08
Dividend income - {50.33)
Employee Stock Compensation Exp (81.89) 119.11
Unrealised gain on Investments (44.96) 44.96
Profit on sale of Investment (31.05) (66.08)
Unrealized exchange difference, net (84.58) (38.77)
Operating profit before working capital changes 739.36 1,408.07
Adjustments for :
Increase in trade receivables 141.47 (206.55)
Increase / Decrease in loans 310.83 7294
Increase / Decrease in current assets (121.38) (120.27)
Increase in other financial and non-financial assets (490.i1) 4292
Increase in trade payables 143.12 354.01
Increase in other financial and non-financial liabilities 39.96 13.07
Cash generated from operations 76326 1,564.19
Direct taxes paid (net) (301 .49) (405.52)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 461.77 1,158.67
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets / capital work-in-progress (1,094.69) (197.64)
Sale of fixed assets 2.99 29.14
Payment towards acquisition of subsidiary / non controlling interest (3.45) (479.00)
Profit on sale of Investment 31.05 66.08
Dividend received - 50.33
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (1,064.10) (531.08)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of Equity Shares 290.00 -
Buyback of Preference Shares (500.00) (2,500.00)
Repayment of short term borrowings - (662.50)
Interest paid - (4.08)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (210.00) (3,166.58)
Net cash flow during the year (A+B+C) (812.33) (2,538.99)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,367.24 3,867.44
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents 84.58 38.77
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 639.49 1,367.22
Reconciliation between cash and cash equivalents shown with the Balance Sheet
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer note no. 15) 362.36 54993
Add- Current investments considered as part of cash and cash equivalents
(Refer note no. 13) 277.13 817.32
639.49 1,367.24

Cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement

As per our attached report of even date

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104746W.

Arati Parmar
Partner
Membership No. 102888

Place : Mumbai
Dated : Mzy 29,2018

wﬁW

idur V Bhogilal
Vice Chairman

N —

Ashish Jain
Chief Financial Officer

For and onpehalf of the Roar¢
4 %

Dr. Lalit S. Kanodia
Chairman
DIN 00008050

Voo e

Vanita Naik
Company Secretary




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

a)

b)
1)

ii)

c)

d)

ii)

€)

Company Overview
Lumina Datamatics Limited (‘the Company’) having CIN U22220TN2007PLC065507 was incorporated on November 26, 2007 and is engaged in the
business of e-commerce, e-retail and e-publishing services which mainly include editorial services, composition services, media and related services.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2017 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies
(Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

First-time adoption: [n accordance with Ind AS 101 on First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, the Company’s first Ind AS financial
statements include, three balance sheets viz. the opening balance sheet as at 1st April, 2016 and balance sheets as at 31st March, 2017 and 3 1st March,
2018 and two statements each of profit and loss, cash flows and changes in equity for the years ended 31st March, 2017 and 31st March, 2018
together with related notes. The same accounting policies have been used for all periods presented.

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the company under Ind AS. Refer note 37 for an explanation of how the transition from
previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

* certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) which is measured at fair value;
* defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles require estimates and assumptions to be made
that affect the reported amounts of the assets and liabilities on the date of financiai statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the year in which the results are known / materialized.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate
prevalent at the date of transaction.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translaticn at the balance sheet date is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the vear in which it arises.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from services is recognised based on time and material and billed to the clients as per the terms of the contract. In the case of fixed price
contracts, revenue is recognised on periodical basis based on units executed and delivered.

Cost and earnings in excess of billings are classifed as unbilled revenue while billings in excess of cost and camnings are classified as unearned
revenue. Discount is recognised on cash basis in accordance with the contractual term of the agreement with the cusiomers.

Interest on deployment of funds is recognised on accrual basis. Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is established. Profit on
sale of investments is recognised on sale of investments.

Income tax

Tax expense comprise of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act.

Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal
of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are recognized only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient fuiure taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized
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Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

At each balance sheet date unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed. t recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent that it has
become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred
tax assets can be realized.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will
be paid during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Accounting for credit available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by
way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement.

Leases

As a lessee

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as Finance Leases. The leases where the
lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased items, are classified as operating lease. Operating lease
payments are recognised as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily couvertible into cash and have original maturities of three months or
less from date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or pavments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment.

Inventories
Inventory, if any, is valued at cost (arrived on FIFO basis) or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Custom Duty on the goods where title has
passed to the Company is included in the value of inventory.

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

* those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on
whether the company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transacticn costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal
and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into which the group ciassifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part-of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derscognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
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* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value (except investment in joint venture and subsidiaries which is valued at
amortised cost). Where the company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit
or loss as other income when the company’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/(losses) in the statement of profit and loss.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separatety from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt
instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 29 details how the
company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

* The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or
more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is derecognised if the company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the company retains control of the financial asset, the asset
is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. ’

Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to rcceive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge it's risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain firm
commitments and forecasted transactions. Such forward contracts are utilised against the inflow of funds under firm commitments. The Company does
not use the forward contract for speculative purposes. The Company designates these hedging instruments as cash flow hedge. The use of hedging
instruments is governed by the Company's policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the use of such financial
derivatives consistent with the Company's risk management strategy.
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Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value and are remeasured at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of these
derivatives that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised directly in OCI and the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as they arise.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined based on observable market inputs including currency spot and forward rates, yield
curves, currency volatility etc.

Hedge accounting is disconiinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
At that time for forecasted transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in OCI is retained until the forecasted
transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in Shareholders' Funds is
transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty

Property, plant and equipment o

Property, plant and equipments are valued at cost after reducing accumulated depreciation until the date of the balance sheet. Direct costs are
capitalised until the assets are ready to use and include financing costs relating to any specific borrowing attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets.
Intangible assets are recognised, only if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and
the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. Capital work-in-progress includes assets not put to use before the year end.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1
April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the Straight Line Method as per the useful life and in the manner prescribed in Schedule
11 to Companies Act, 2013,

Intangible Asscts

Computer software
The intangible assets are recorded at cost and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalised developmient costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is available for use.

Amortisation methods and periods
The company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method over a period of 3 years.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised imtially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings
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Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished cr transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability
(debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which 1s measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period
with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender
agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs, which are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of the cost
of the assets. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the year in which they are incurred.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made,

Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.
Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.

Employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, as they are incurred.

Defined Benefit Plan .
Company's liabilities towards gratuity and leave encashment are determined using the projected unit credit method as at Balance Sheet date. Actuarial
gains / losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Long-term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial

valuation.

Restreited Stock Units
Employee Compensation in the form of stock options, granted under LDL RS1J Plan 2016 have been charged to Profit & Loss Statement, based on fair
value method, over the vesting period.
3
Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Earnings per share

In determining Earnings per Share, the Company considers the net profit after tax after reducing the preference dividend and tax thereon and includes
the post-tax effect of any extra-ordinary items. The number of shares used in computing basic Eamnings per Share is the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period. The number of shares used in computing diluted Earnings per Share comprises the weighted average shares
considered for deriving basic Earnings per Share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Standards issued but not effective .
On March 28, 2018 the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers and certain
amendments to certain existing Ind AS. These amendments will be applicable to the company from April 1, 2018.




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

i) IssueofInd AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers
Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including Ind AS 18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction contracts and the related
interpretations. Ind AS 115 provides a single model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers based on the identification and
satisfaction of performance obligation.
if) Amendments to existing issued Ind AS
Ind AS 21 - The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
Ind AS 40 - Investment property
Ind AS 12 - Income taxes
Ind AS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Ind AS 112 - Disclosure of interests in Other Entities
Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company's financial statements.
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Note 3 - Intangible assets (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Computer Softwares Total

Gross block

As at April 01, 2016 151.85 151.85

Additions 74.34 74.34

As at March 31, 2017 226.19 226.19

Additions 337.50 337.50

As at March 31, 2018 563.69 563.69

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Computer Softwares Total

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at April 01, 2016 - -

Amortisation charge during the year 128.37 128.37
As at March 31,2017 128.37 128.37
Amortisation charge during the year 171.51 171.51
As at March 31,2018 299.88 299.88
Net carrying amount as April 01, 2016 151.85 151.85
Net carrying amount as March 31, 2017 97.82 97.82
Net carrying amount as March 31, 2018 263.81 263.81

Note 3.1: Deemed cost as at April 1, 2016 which is the net carrying amount on April 1, 2016 which is tabulated as follows:

Gross carrying . Accumulated Net carrying
amount as at April Depreciation amount
Particulars 01, 2016
Computer Softwares 338.17 186.32 151.85
Total 338.17 186.32 151.85
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Note 4 - Non-current investments

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

April 01, 2016

Unquoted

In subsidiaries - Wholly Owned (at Cost)

Investment in equity instruments (fully paid-up)

As at March 31, 2018: 502, As at March 31, 2017: 502, as at April 1, 2016 : 502 Shares of
Rs 10.00 each of Investment in Lumina Datamatics, Inc USA

As at Marzh 31, 2018: 50,000, As at March 31, 2017: 25,500, as at April 1, 2016 25,500
Shares of Rs 10,00 each of Investment in Equity Shares LDR eRetail Limited

Investment in preference shares

As at March 31, 2018: 49,50,000 , As at March 31, 2017: 49,40,000, as at April 1, 2016 :
16,50,000 Shares of Rs 10.00 each Investment in Preference Shares LDR eRetail Limited

In Joint Venture
Unguoted (at FYTPL)

Investment in equity shares

As at March 31, 2018: 50,000 , As at March 31, 2017: 25,500, as at Apnil 1, 2016 25,500
Shares of Rs 10.00 each of Investment in Equity Shares LDR eRetail Limited

Investment in preference shares

As at March 31, 2018: 49,50,000 , As at March 31, 2017: 49,40,000, as at Apri! 1, 2016 :
16,50,000 Shares of Rs 10.00 each Investment in Preference Shares LDR eRetail Limited

Others

Unquoted (at FYTPL)

Investment in preference shares

As at March 31, 2018: Nil (As at March 31, 2017: 1,500,000 8% years Non-cumulative
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (NCCPS) of Rs.10 each, as ai April 1, 2016:
Nil HandyTraining Technologies Private Ltd, India) ’

Investment in equity shares
As at March 31, 2018: 4657 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each (As at March 31, 2017: Nil, As at
April 1, 2016: Nil HandyTraining Technologies Private Ltd, India)

17,611.43

495.00

150.00

17,529.54

2.55

494.00

105.04

17,529.54

2.55

165.00

Total

Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Note 5 - Other non-current financial assets

18,261.43

18,131.13

17,697.09

18,261.43

18,131.13

17,697.09

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

April 01, 2016

Unsecured considered good
Other deposits
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts (FVOCI)

23837
435

255.40
86.44

198.94
49.19

Total

Note 6 - Other non-current assets

242.73

341.84

248.13

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

April 01, 2016

Unsecured considered good

Balance with govt authorities

588.21

381.79

387.46

Total

588.21

381.79

387.46
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Note 7 - Current investments (Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Investment in mutual funds

Quoted (at FVTPL)

As at March 31, 2018: Nil ,As at March 31, 2017: Nil, as at April 1, 2016 - 73,838 units of

Rs.1528.74 each of Reliance Liquid Fund TP - DDR - - 1,128.79

As at March 31, 2018: Nil ,As at March 31, 2017: Nil, as at April 1, 2010 -658,448 units of

Rs.100.30 each of Birla Sun Life Saving Fund - DDR - - 660,40

As at March 31, 2018: Nil ,As at March 31, 2017: Nil, as at April 1, 2016 -6,249,137 units

of Rs.10.18 each of Axis Short Term Fund - WDR - - 635.86

As at March 31, 2018: Nil ,As at March 31, 2017: Nil, as at April 1, 2016 - 5,240,220 units

of Rs.12.15 each of ICICI Pru Short Term Plan-Reg - FDR - - €36.52

As at March 31, 2018: Nil ,As at March 31, 2017: Nil, as at April 1, 2016 -2710 units of

Rs.1000.62 each of Axis liquid fund - DDR - - 27.12

As at March 31, 2018: Nil ,As at March 31, 2017: Nil, as at April 1, 2016 - 40,554 units of

Rs.100.19 each of BSL cash plus fund - DDR - - 40.63

As at March 31, 2018: Nil, As at March 31, 2017: Nil, as at April 1, 2016 - 3,000,000 units

of Rs.10.09 each of ICICI Prud FMP Series 78 - 95 Days Plan M — Growth - - 302.69

As at March 31, 2018: 259285, As at March 31, 2017: 259285, as at April 1. 2016 - Nil

units of Rs.10.00 each of Birla Sun Life Short Term Fund - Growth 172.29 150.66 -

As at March 31, 2018: 2483, As at March 31, 2017: 16587, as at April 1, 2016 ~: Nil units

of Rs.1000.00 each of Reliance liquid fund — TP - Growth 104.84 666.66 -

Total 277.13 817.32 3,432.01

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 277.13 817.32 3,432.01

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - - -

Note 8 - Trade receivables (Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Unsecured (refer note number 30)

Considered Good 969.28 815.94 480.52

Considered doubtful 142.37 437.18 566.05
1,111.65 1,253.12 1,046.57

Less :- Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 142.37 437.18 566 05

Total 969.28 815.94 480.52

Note 9 - Cash and cash equivalents (Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01,2016

Bank balances 357.44 540.71 43434

Cash on hand 492 9.22 1.09

Total 362.36 549.93 435.43

Note 10 - Other current financial assets

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

April 01, 2016

Unsecured considered good

Other deposits - ST 0.49 (15.98) 46.35
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts (FVOCI) 239.14 201.59 -

Other advances 150.45 45.84 64.83
Total 390.08 231.45 111.18
Note 11 - Other current assets (Rs, in Lacs)
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 01, 2016

Prepaid expenses - 95.48 68.05 33.11
Total 95.48 68.05 33.11
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Note 12 - Share capital and other equity

12(u4) - Equity share capital

(i) Authorised share capital of face value of Rs. 10/~ each

Particulars Number of shares Rs. in Lacs
As at April 1, 2016 13,500,000 1,350.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2017 13,500,000 1,350,00
Increase during the year . -
As at March 31, 2018 13,500,000 lgS0.00
12(b) - Preference share capital
(i) Auithorised preference share capital of face value of Rs. 10/- each
Particulars Number of shares Rs. in Lacs
As at April 1, 2015 78,000,000 7,800.00
Increase during the year . -
March 31,2017 78,000,000 7,800.00
Increase during the year - -
April 01, 2016 78,000,000 7,800.00
(iii) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up equity share capital of face value of Rs. 10/- each
Particulars Number of shares Rs. in Lacs
As at April 1, 2016 222,859 22.29
Increase during the year 9,805,796 980.58
March 31, 2017 10,028,655 1,002.87
Increase during the year 200,000 20.00
April 01, 2016 10,228,655 1,022.87
et
(iii) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up preference share capital of face value of Rs, 10/- each
Particulars Number of shares Rs. in Lacs
As at April 1, 2016 77,175,806 7,717.58
Buyback during the yeat (41,254,125) (4,125.41)
March 31, 2017 35,921,681 3,592.17
Buvback during the year (8,250,825) (825.08)
April 01,2016 . 27,670,856 2,767.09
(iv) Movements in equity share capital
Particulars Number of shares Rs.in Lacs
As at April 1, 2016 222,859 2229
Issued during the year 9,805,796 980,58
Other movements - -
As at March 31,2017 10,028,655 1,002.87
Issued during the year 200,000 20.00
Qther movements . .
As at March 31, 2018 10,228,655 1,022 87
(v) Movements in preference share capital
Particulars Number of shares Rs. in Lacs
As at April 1, 2016 77,175,806 7,717.58
Issued during the year - -
Buyback during the year (41,254,125) (4,125.41)
As at March 31, 2017 35.921,681 3,592.17
Issued during the year - -
Buyback during the year (8,250,825) (825.08)
As at March 31. 2018 27,670,856 2,767.09
(vi) Shares of the company held by holding company
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01,2016
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by Datamatics Globai Services 10,028.655 10,028,655 162,957
Limited
(vii) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Particulars Number of shares % Holding Number of shares % Holding Number of shares % Holding
Equity shares with voting rights
Datamatics Global Services Limited 10,028.655 98% 16,028,655 100% 162,957 T312%
JM Financial Trustee Co. Pvt Ltd. - - - 25,884 11.51%
NEA Indo-US Venture Capital LLC - - 12,819 5.75%
9% Redeemable preference shares with voting rights (refer below
note)
Datamatics Global Services Limited 27,670,856 100% 35,921,681 100%
JM Financial Trustee Co. Pvt Ltd. - - - 60,028,464 71.78%

- - - 17.147,342 22.22%

NEA Indo-US Venture Capital LLC

(v} Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The company has 1ssued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each. Each holder of equity share ertitled 10 one vote per shars.
The company may in generai meeting declare dividends. but no dividends shall exceed the amount recommended by the board. Repayment of capial wiit be in proportion to the number of equity shares held.




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

(vi) 9% Redeemable Preference Shares

During the last year, the company has converted the 0.000001% compulsorily convertible preference shares into 9% Redeemabie Preference Shares having a par value of * 10 each. Each preference shareholders of the
redeemable prefererice shares shall be paid dividend on a nen-cumulative basis.

Voting Rights and Coupon Rate
Each holder of redeemable preference shares shall carry voting rights as per the provision of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The coupon rate is 9% p.a. on non-cumulative basis.

Redemption of preference shares

The redeemable preference shares will be redeemable at a face value of * 10 and not exceeding 10 years from the date of conversion of compulscrily convertible preference shares into 9% Redeemable Preference Shares.

The pany has issued comp ily convertible preference shares having a par value of " 10 each. Each holder of the pulsorily convertible p shares has the right 1o entitle an annual non-cumulative per share
dividend equal to 0.000001% of the price of the preference shares.

12(b) - Reserves and surplus (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
Equity of dfi ial instruments Refer Note (i) below 93.08 93.68 4,678
Securities premium reserve Refer Note (ii) below 4,971.99 5,201.99 7,701.99
Retained earnings §.53936 4.896.56 4,016.45
ESOP reserve Refer Note (jii) below 119.11 119.11 -
Capital reserve Refer Note (iv) below 5,892.2} 5,892.21 5,892.21
Capital redemption reserve Refer Note (v) below 2,019.42 1,519.42 -
Actuarial gains and losses Refer Note (vi) below (61.14) 22.72) -
Cash flow hedging reserve Refer Note (vii) below 173.23 205.38 49.19
Total 18,747.27 17,905.02 22.337.80
& ==rry ey

Retained eamings
Nature of reserves
(i) Equity T of pound fi ial instr

Equity portion of redeemable preference shares has been accounted as per Ind AS.

(ii) Securities Premium
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii )JESOP reserve

ESOP reserve is used for issue of share capital under RSU plan.

(iv) Capital Reserve '

Capital reserve created on the merger of one of the subsidiaries with the company. Also Goodwill on common contral transaction is adjusted against capital reserve.Capital reserve created on the merger of one
of the subsidiaries with the company.

(v) Capital Redemption Reserve
As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so
purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. ’

(vi) OCI - Actuarial gains and losses
Actuarial gain and losses are recognised in other compreshensive income, net of taxes.

(vii) OCI - Cash Flow Hedging Reserve

The cash flow hedging 1eserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges The
cumulative gair or loss arising on changes in fair value of the designated portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. Such gains or
losses will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in the period in which the hedged transaction occurs.
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Note 13 - Non-current borrowings

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
Preference Share Capital (Liability) 1,626.16 2,084.87 -
Total 1,626.16 2,084.87 -
Note 14 - Non-current Provisions (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
Unfunded (refer note 33
Gratuity 265.79 188.69 184.77
Leave Encashment 156.38 165.22 125.04
Total 422.17 353.91 309.81
Note 15 - Current borrowings {Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 Aprit 01, 2016
Secured
Loans repayable on demand - 662.50
Total - - 662.50
=t

Note 15.1 : Details of terms of repayment for the short term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured short term borrowings

{Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Terms and conditions of borrowings March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Amount of line: Rs 1,375 Lacs/-
Borrowing Base:
Export fi /B dit 80 days / cash

1) Loans repayable on demand cr)::l(i]t y Il(net"o(l:sing uyers eredit : up to 180 days / cas

(1) From bank (secured) Interest rates:

1) Pre-shipment credit in foreign currency F 5 i J Nil Nil 662.50
- Citibank. NA rom time to time as mutually agree
’ Coliateral:
Exclusive charge on stock, book debts and moveable
fixed assets ¢
Amount of line : Rs, 1500 Lacs/-
Borrowing Base
Export finance / Buyers credit : upto 180 days / cash
credit / Revolving
Interest rates :
ne . - . .
2) Standard Chartered Bank, India From time to time at mutually agreed Nil Nil il

Collateral :
Exclusive charge on stock, book debts and movzable
fixed assets

Note 16 - Trade payables (Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

April 01, 2016

Dues of Micro and small enterprises (refer note 44)

614.61

Dues other than Micro and small enterprises 757.72 260.59
Total 75712 614.61 260.59
Note 17 - Other current financial liabilities {Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
Other payables £10.11 1288 17.55
Total 110.11 12.88 17.55
Note 18 - Current Provisions (Rs. in Lacs
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01,2016
Unfunded (refer note 33) .
Gratuity 17.81 28.79 51.89
Leave Encashment 43.99 21.67 61.064
Total 61.80 50.46 112.93
Note 19 - Other current liabilities {Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
Statutory dues 122.81 11931 101.56
Total 122.81 119.31 101.56
=k
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Note 20 - Revenue from operations

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Export sales 10,818.67 10,237.94
Sales -domestic 20.51 26.64
Total 10,839.18 10,264.58
Note 21 - Other income (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Profit on sale of investments 31.05 66.08
Dividend income from investment in mutual funds - 50.33
Unrealised gains on Investments 9.78 5.42
Unrealised gains on Investments on Handytrain 44.96 (44.96)
Exchange gain 382.72 19.41
Miscellaneous receipts 3.22 1.10
Total 471.73 97.38
Note 22 - Employee benefit expenses (Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

Basic Salary, Wages & Allowances 6,763.96 5,660.54
Contribution towards PF & Other funds 459.08 392.26
Share based compensation (81.89) 119.11
Staft Welfare 199.66 162.23
Total 7,340.81 6,334.14
Note 23 - Finance costs (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Interest on loan from banks - 4.08
Interest on financial liability 41.28

Total 41.28 4.08
Note 24 - Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars March 31,2018  March 31,2017
Depreciation on property palnt and equipment 119.47 176.21
Amortisation on intangible assets 171.51 128.37
Total 290.98 304.58
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Note 25 - Other expenses (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Outsourcing cost 607.81 336.05
Electricity expenses 254.95 241.66
Legal & Professional expenses 135.67 105.80
Sundry Balances Written back (Net) (294.81) (128.87)
Travelling expenses 230.38 191.25
Link Charges 91.93 80.63
Technical fees 440.75 492.74
Vendor charges 180.42 167.62
Rent 347.26 359.61
Sales commission 2.26 24.36
Communication charges 31.65 29.75
Vehicle expenses 78.58 63.52
Miscellaneous expenses 100.78 77.88
Hire charegs 56.06 48.63
Advertisement expenses 3.36 0.32
Recruitment charges 50.18 14.57
Audit fees (refer note 38) 12.06 12.02
Sales promotion 9.08 22.36
Printing & Stationery 10.93 9.11
Subscription expenses 38.83 16.61
Bank charges 14.94 12.16
Rates & Taxes 22.05 28.66
Water charges 6.52 7.31
Repairs & Maintenance expenses 201.44 165.82
Profit on sale of assets 0.95 2.31
Security charges 57.60 54.16
Bad debts 12.05 2.95
Insurance 17.09 12.14

Total 2,720.76 2,451.12
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Note 26 - Taxation

26(a) - Income tax expense

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2018 Year ended  March 31, 2017
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year 147.40 466.30
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (37.25) -
Total current tax expense 110.15 466.30
Deferred tax
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets 196.95 (39.97)
Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities (32.82) (38.40)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 164.13 (78.37)
Income tax expense 274.28 387.93
26(b) - Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by staiutory tax rates (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Year ended  March 31,2018 Year ended March 31,2017
Profit for the year 917.08 1,268.04
Statutory tax rate applicable to Lumina Datamatics Limited 33.06% 34.61%
Tax expense at applicable tax rate 303.21 438.84
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Depreciation
ESOP Outstanding (27.08) 41.22
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 0.€2 1.55
Dividend Income (17.42)
Amalgamation Expenses (4.85)
Disallowed w/s 14A - 341
Dedcution /s 80 JJAA (39.15)
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (37.25) -
Others 2.58 (12.22)
Tax rate changes 80.62 -
Others (4.43) (67.46)
Income tax expense 274,28 387.92
26(c) - Deferred tax (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars March 31, 2018 |Movement |March 31,2017 (M April 01, 2016
Deferred Tax Assets
Compensated Absences 55.74 8.94 64.68 {0.28) 64.40
Gratuity 78.90 (3.63) 75.27 6.62 81.90
Empl.Stock Option Outstanding 45.44 45.44 {45.44) -
Bonus - - - (1.44) (1.44)
Directors Commision 1.25 7.05 8.31 (8.31) -
Others 0.14 0.03 0.17 0.01 0.18
Provision for Doubtful Receivables, Loans and Advances 49.27 102.63 | 151.30 44.60 195.90
Revaluation of investment 16.72) 6.72 - - -
Investement in Handy Train - 15.56 15.56 (15.56) -
Revaluation of Pref Share Capital 32.21 - 3221 (32.21) -
Total Deferred Tax Assets 210.80 182.14 392.93 {52.00) 340.94
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation and ‘Amortisation {6.45) 41.97 35.51 30.13 65.64
Amalgamation expenses 4.08 (9.15) (5.07) 10.15 5.07
Cash flow heding reserve 70.27 12.39 82.66 (82.66) -
Unrelaised Gain on MF - - - 3.10 3.10
Unrelaised Gain on Investment 4.97 - 4.97 {4.97) -
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 72.87 45,21 118.07 (44.26) 73.81
Net Deferred Tax 137.93 136.93 274.86 {7.74) 267.13
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Note 27: Fair value measurements

0

Financial instruments by category (Rs. in Lacs)
31 March 2018 31 March 201 i April 2016
Amortised Amortised Amortised
FVPL FVOCI1 cost FVPL Fvoci cost FVPL FVOCI cost
Financial assets
Investments
- Mutual funds 277.12 - - 817.32 - - 3,432.02 - -
- Equity instruments 150.00 - 17,616.43 105 04 - 17,532.09 - - 17,532.09
- Preference shares 495.00 - - 494.00 - - 165.00 - -
Trade receivables - - 969 28 - - 81594 - - 480.52
Cash and cash equivalents - - 362.36 - - 549.93 - - 435.43
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - - - -
Security deposit - - 238.37 - - 255.40 - - 198,94
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts - 243,50 - - 288.03 - - 49.19 -
Loan to Employees - - 428 - B 4.84 - - 5.08
Other receivables - - 146.66 - - 25.02 - - 106.10
Total financial assets 922.12 243.50 19,337.38 1,416.36 288.03 19,183.21 3,597.02 49.19 18,758.16 |
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - - - - - - - 662.50
Trade payables - - 757.72 - - 614.61 - - 260.59
Preference Share Capital (Liability) - - 1,626.16 - - 2,084.87 - - -
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings - - - - - - - - -
Other payables - - 116.11 - - 12.88 - - 17.85
Total financial liakilities - - 2,493.99 - - 2,712.35 - - 940.64

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for

which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instuments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An

explanation of each level follows undemeath the table.

(Rs. in Lacs)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value At 31 March 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial Investments at FYPL
Mutual funds - Growth plan 277.12 - - 277.12
Equity mstruments - - 150.00 150.00
Preference shares - - 495.00 495,00
Financial Investments at FYOCI
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts 243.50 243.50
Total financial assets 277.12 - 838.50 1,165.62
(Rs. in Lacs)
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost At 31 March 2018 Level 1, Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
- Equity instruments - - 17.616.43 17,616.43
Total financial assets - - 17,616.43 17,616.43
Financial Liabilities
Preference Share Capital {Liability) - - 1,626.16 1,626.16
Total financial liabilities - - 1,626.16 1,626.16
(Rs. in Lacs)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair valune At 31 March 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial Investments at FVPL
Mutual funds - Growth plan 817.32 - - 817.32
Equity instruments - - 105.04 105.04
Preference shares - - 494.00 494.00
Financial Investments at FVOCI
Fair value of outstanding forward contracts 288.03 288.03
Total financial assets 817.32 - 887.07 1,704.39 |
(Rs. in Lacs)
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost At 31 March 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
- Equity instruments - - 17.532.09 17,532.09
Total financial assets - - 17,832.09 17,532.09
Financial Liabilities
Preference Share Capital (Liability) - - 2,084.87 2,084.87
Total financial liabilities - - 2.084.87 2,084.87
(Rs. in Lacs
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value At 1 April 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial Investments ut FVPL
Mutual funds - Growth plan 343202 - 3,432.02
Equity instruments - - - -
Preference shares - - 165.00 165.00
Financial Investments at FVOCI - - - -
Fair value of putstanding forward contracts - - 49.19 49.19
Total financial assets 3,432.02 - 214.19 3,646.21




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

i)

(Rs. in Lacs’
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost At 1 April 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
- Equity instruments - - 17,532.09 17,532.09
Total financial assets - - 17,532.09 17,532.09

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutua} funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity
instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-thecounter denvatives) is determined using valuati hniques which imise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific esti If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and
indemnification asset included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
* the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

All of the lting fair value are included in level 2 except for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideraion and indemnification asset, where the fair values have been determined based on present
values and the discount rates used were adjusted for counterparty or own credit risk.

Valuation processes
The carrying amounts of trade recsivables, trade payables, capital creditors and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, dus to their short-term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values
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Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 30: Related party transactions
{To the extent identified by management and refied upon by auditors)

Name of the related parties Nature of control
D. ics Global Services Limited Holding Company
Lumina Datamatics Inc. USA Subsidiary Company
LDR ¢-Retail Limited bsidiary Company
Lumina Datamatics, GmbH bsidiary of Lumina D: ics Inc. USA
Lumina D ics A & bsidiary of Lumina D ics Inc. USA
Analytics, LLC
Cignex D: ics Technologies Limited | Feliow Subsidiary Company
JM Financial Trustee Company Private] Significant influence
Limited et -
NEA Indo-US Venture Capital LLC Significant influence
Datamatics Staffing Services Limited Enterprise owned by relatives of Key Managerial Personne!
Delta Infosolutions Private Limited Ultimate Holding Company
Mr. Sameer L. Kanodia Executive Director (from 1st June 2017)
Mr. Lalit S. Kanodia Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Krishna Kant Tewari (Director) Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Kapilanandan Viswanathan Key Managerial Personnel (upto 18th July 2016)
Fia¥ tox)
Ms. Sivakameswari Viswanathan Key Managerial Personnel (upto 18th July 2016)
(Director)
Mr. Ashish Jain | Key Managerial Personnel
Ms. Vanita Naik Key Managerial Personnel
Ms. Kruti Shah Key Managerial Personnel (upto 15th September 2016)
Nature of transactions . {Rs. in Lacs)
Name of the related party Description March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016
Service income _ 10.04 R
Expenses incurred by DGSL
319.52 309.43 -
Expenses incurred for DGSL 0.60 14.87 .
Rent Expenses
pens - 57.10 -
Sale of fixed assets N 28.77 R
. . Amount payable as at the end of the year 56,03 53.96 10.95
Datamatics Global Scrvices
Limited (DGSL) Bonus shares issued during the year : 980,58 R
Preference shares bought back during the year
825.08 15537 -
Amount receivable as at the end of the year
- 2.94 20.62
Preference share capital as at the end of the
year
2,767.09 3,592.17 -
Equity Investment at the end of the year
1,002.87 1,002.87 16.30
Service income 7,647.55 2,175.30 -
Amount receivable as at the end of the vear
Lumina Datamatics Inc. 512.96 496.88 385.86
usa Investment in equity shares made during the
year
8189 - -
Investment in shares at the end of the year
17,61143 17,529.54 17,529.54




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Investment in cquity shares made during the

year
2.45 . -
Investment in equity shares at the end of the
year
5,00 2.58 2.55
Investment in preference shares made during
the year
100 329.0C -
LDR e¢-Retail Limited
Investment in preference shares at the end of
the year
495.00 494.00 165.00
Reimbursement of expenses
0.08 3.26 .
Tochnical Fees 84.94 20952 -
Amount reccivable as at the end of the year
- 3.54 -
Amount payable as at the end of the year
§9.20 240,56 -
Datamatics Staffing Services .
R tmenl ex;
Limited corultment expenses 021 1.41 -
Reimbursement of expenses
13.57 2.50 -
Rent Expenses
Cignex D 2031 - -
Technologies Limited Technical Fees
6.63 - -
Amount payable as at the end of the year
9.64 1.52 -
Serviee income 198.20 197.78 -
Lumina Datamatics, GmbH
Amount receivable as at the end of the year
13.12 8.29 63.07
Equity Investment at the end of the year
JM Financial Trustee - - 3,271.82
Company Private Limite
Preference share capital as at the end of the
year
. . 6,002.85
Equity Investment at the end of the year
NEA Indo- US Venture - - 1.822.60
Capital LLC
Preference share capital as at the end of the
year
. . 1,714.73
Delta Info solutions Private | Preference share capital buy back during the
Limited year - 2,571.69 -
2'1’;\2:’; ’::::n‘iu“ Equity Investment at the end of the year . i 1176
Ms Sivakameswari Equity Investment at the end of the year
Viswanathan 4 > . - 3376
Mr. Sameer L. Kanodia Commission paid during the year 15.00 %400 N
R ation to Key M ial Personnel
(Rs. in Lacs)
Name of the related party March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Mr. Kapilanandan Viswanathan Nil 56.59
Ms. Sivakameswari Viswanathan Nil 56.65
Mr. Sameer L. Kanodia 34.75 -
Mr. Krishna Tiwari 89.67 84,11
Mr. Ashish Jain 67.34] 68.85
Ms. Vanita Naik 11.i5 4.91
Ms. Kruti Shah Nil 1.5




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 31: Leases

a) Non-cancellable operating leases
The Group is obligated under some operating leases for office space which are renewable on a periodical basis. Lease payments undar operating leases for the year
ended March 31, 2018 aggregated to Rs.347.26 Lacs (PY - Rs. 359.61 Lacs) and for vehicle lease for the year ended March 31, 2018 aggregated to Nil (PY - Rs. 3.61
lacs).

Future lease rentals payable from the balance sheet date n respect of non cancellable residential and office premises:

{Rs. in Lacs)
. 31 March 2018 {31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Within one year 332.03 241 64 252.11
Later than one year but not later than five 12827 271 80 13.98
years : * i
Later than five years - - -

Notes:
(a) Future lease payments are determined on the basis of terms of the lease agreement,
(b) At the expiry of term of the agreement, the Company has an option either to retum the leased asset or extend the term by giving a notice in writing

(c) There are no sublease payments as well as no contingent rent

Note 32: Earnings per share

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Net Profit after taxation attributable to equity

(a) |shareholders (Rs. in Lacs) 642.80 880.11
Weighted average number of outstanding

(b) |equity shares considered for Basic EPS 100.65 100.29
(Nos.) {In Lacs)
Weighted average number of outstanding

(¢) |equity shares considered for Diluted EPS 104.97 104.61
(Nos.) (In Lacs)

(d) |Eamings per share - basic (In Rs.) 6.39 878

(e) |[Eamnings per share - diluted (In Rs.) 6.12 .. 841




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 33: Employee benefits

The disclosure as required by Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits” are gi

ven below:

The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises
each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligation of leave benefits (unfunded) is also recognised using the projected unit credit method.

(Rs. in Lacs)
I._{Defined Contribution Plan [ Mar-18 Mar-17
Charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss based on contributions:
Employers contribution to provident fund 362.83 338.47
Employers contribution to employees' state insurance 102.89 61.03
Employers contribution to labour welfare fund and others 0.54 053
Included in contribution to provident fund and other funds 466.27 400.03
II. Defined Benefit Plan
i) Movement in Present Vatue of Obligation
(Rs. in Lacs)
Gratuity Leave Encashment
Particulars 31 March 201931 March 201131 March 2018 31 March 2017
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 217.48 236 66 186.89 '186.08
Current Service Cost 54.60 45.01 73.00 40.70
Interest Expense or Cost 15.41 2312 13.24 15.20
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
- change in demographic assumptions - 10.36 2.02 2.12
- change in financial assumptions (56.83) 1222 (24.68) 8.88
- experience variance (i.e. actual experience vs assumptions) 110.06 12.17 (13.62) (20.67)
Past Service Cost §.88 - -
Benefits Paid 66.02 122.06 36.49 4542
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 283.59 217.48 200.37 186.89
ii) Expenses recognised in the income statement and other comprehensive income
Gratuity Leave Encashment
Particulars 31 March 201331 March 201731 March 2018 31 March 2017
Current service cost 54.60 45.01 73.00 40.70
Past service cost 8.88 -
Net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability 1541 23.12 13.24 15.20
Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss Account 78.90 68.14 86.24 55.89
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gains) / losses
- change in demographic assumptions - 10.36 2.02 212
--Change in financial assumptions (56.83) 12,22 (24.68) 8.88
- Experience variance 110.06 12.17 (13.62) (20.67)
Expenses recognised in OCI 53.23 34.75 (36.27) {9.66)
1ii) Financial Assumptions
The principal financial assumptions used in the valuation are shown in the table below
Gratuity Leave Encash t
Particulars 31 March 201831 March 201131 March 2018 31 March 2017
Discount Rate (per annum) 7.70% 7.09% 7.70% 7.09%
Salary growth rate (per annum) 3.50% 4.50% 3.50% 4.50%
Mortality Rate JIALM 06-08 [IALM 06-08 |IALM 06-08 JALM 06-08




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

iv) Sensitivity Analysis Gratuity
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount rate (- / + 1%) 215 188 | N/A /A
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 7.30% -6.30%

Salary growth rate (- / + 1%) 187.05 215 | NIA NA
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -6.60% 7.50%

Attrition Rate (- / + 25% of attrition rates) 196.22 204 | N/A N/A
(% change compared to base Gue to sensitivity) 2.10% 1.70%

Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 20031 200 | N/A N/A
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.00% 0.00%

Sensitivity Analysis

Leave Encash t

(i) LDL RSU PLAN 2016

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount rate (- / + 1%) 317 256 | N/A N/A
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 11.60% -9.80%
Salary growth rate (- / + 1%) 254.36 318 | NA N/A
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -10.30% 12.00%
Attrition Rate (- / + 25% of attrition rates) 27523 291 | N/A N/A
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -2.90% 2.50%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 283.23 284 | N/A N/A
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -0.10% 0.10%

j|Miaturity profile of Defined Benefit obligation Gratuity [Leave Encashment
Expected Cash flow over the next (valued on undiscounted basis) Amount Aimount
1 Year 18 44
2 to S years 92 86
6 to 10 years 107 69
More than 10 years 579 201

The Company has granted “Restricted Stock Units” under “LDL RSU PLAN 20167 The plan shall extend to Senior Executive employees as
wdentified by the Board/ Nomination and Remuneration Committee, being the permanent emloyces of the Company includiag its Subsidiaries
and its directors. RSU shall vest at the end of 3 years from the date of grant and based upon satisfaction of the performance criteria. The
continuation of employee in the services of the Company shall be the primary requirement of the vesting. Under the LDL RSU PLAN 2016,

432,000 options were granted at exercise price of Rs. 10 per option.




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 34; Contingent liabilities
A Contingent liabilities

Provision is made in the fi ial if it b probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities to the extent not provided for:

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

{Rs. in Lacs)
Name of the Statute Nature of dues Amount Financial | Forum where t.he dispute is
year pending
Service tax Rules, 1994 Rs. 69.28 Service tax Appellate
(Refer note (a) below) Service tax refund {Amount Deposited - Nil) 2010-2011 Tribunal, Chennai
Income tax Act, 196! Rs. 1137 Commissioner of Income tax
(Refer note (b) below) Income tax (Amount Deposited - Nil) 2009-10 (Appezls). Chernai
Income tax Act. 1961 Rs. 1077.80 Commissioner of Income tax
{Refer note (b) below) Income tax (Amount Deposited - Nil) 2013-2014 (Appeals), Chennai

(a) During the financial year 2014-15, the company had received a Show cause notice from the Assistant Commissioner of service tax for the refund
issued of Rs. 69.28 Lacs made for the financial year 2010-2011, where the case is pending before the Service tax Appellate Tribunal. The company during
the same year had filed a reply against the Show cause notice.

{b) The company had received an assessment order from the Income tax department during January 2018 demanding Rs. 1,089.16 Lacs for the financial
year 2013-2014 and 2009-10 on account of disall e w's. 79 and disall u/s. 56 (2) (viib) of the Income tax Act, 1961 against which Company
has filed a rectification petition under section 154 of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company has alsc filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income

Tax (Appeals), Chennai.

Based on the professionai advice obtained by the company, the is hopeful of a successful outcome of the appeal and therefore no
provision is considered necessary.

Note 35: Commitments

a) Capital commiitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as foliows

(Rs. in Lacs)
31 March 2018 |31 March 2017 {1 April 2016

Estimate amount of contract remaining to be
exceuted on capital account snd not provided
for (Net of Advances) 29 81 47.59 Nil

Note 36: Derivative transactions

‘The company uses forward exch to hedge its exp in foreign currency. The information en derivative instruments is given below;
The table below analyzes the derivative financial instruments into relevant matwrity groupings bascd on the ining peniod as of the Balance Sheet
date:
(Rs. in Lacs)
. As 31 March As March 31 As March 31.
P f ’
articulars 2018 2017 2016
Not later than one month 551.35 305.28 21749
Late: >
amtrhtshan one month and not later than three 651.29 218,55
mon 1,109.09
Later than three months and not later than one 3.189.98 2.008.59
|vear 4.163.22
Later than one year 1.338.57 3,346.87 777.77
Total 7,162.23 7,493.42 3,222.39
[ As at March 31,2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
Currency Notional amount Notional amount aNn(:::::lof
’ No.of  |of Currency Fair Valve gain / of Currency Fair Value No. of Fair Value
No. of Contracts . Curvency
Contracts |Forward (loss) Forward gain / (loss) | Contracts Forward gam / (loss)
contracts contracts
confracts
USD 86 10,350,060, 243,50 93 10,660,000 288.03 72 4,600,000 49.19




Lumina Datamatics Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 37: First-time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS

ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent tae reconciliations from
previous GAAP to Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the lidated fi ¢ for the year ended 31 March 2018, the parative infi T d
in these lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2017 and in the preparation of an opemng Ind AS balance sheet ai 1 April 2016 (the Group’s date ox transmon)
In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Group has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial prepared in d with the dard.
notified under Ci ies (A ing Standards} Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the

transition irom previous GAAP 1o Ind AS has affecied the Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the fcllowing tables and notes.

A, Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional ions and y ptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

A1 Ind AS optional exemptions

A.1.1 Business combinations
Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition date. This provides reiief from full
retrospective application that would require ofall b t prior to the transition date
The group elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to b binations occurring after its t:ansition date. Business combinations occurring prior to the transition date
have not been restated. The group has applied same exemption for invesiment in associates and joint ventares
Ind A3 10} allows a first-time adopter not 1o apply Ind AS 21 Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates retrospectively for business combinations that occurred before the
date of transition 10 Ind AS. In such cases, where the ntity does not apply Ind A3 21 retrospectively to fair value adjustments and goodwﬂl the entity treats them as assets and
habilities of the acquirer entity and not as the acquiree.

The uroup has elected to appiv this exemption.

A.1.2  Cumulative transtation differences
Ind AS 101 permits cumulative translation gains and losses 1o be reset to zero at the transition date. This provides relief from determining ive currency ur
differences in accordance with Ind AS 2! from the date a subsidiary or equity method investee was formed or acquired.
The group elected to reset all cumulative translation gains and losses to zero by transferring it to opening retained earings at ils transition date.

A.L3  Deemed Cost - Propertv. Plant and Equipment. Canital work-in-progress and Intangible Assets
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect 1o continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equip as recognised in the financial as at the
date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as ils deemed cost as at the date of transitron, This exemption can a'so be usea for intangible assets
covered by Ind AS 38 Intangibie Assets. Accordingly. the Group has elected to measure all of its property. plant and equipment, Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets at
their previous GAAP carrving values.

A.l4  Desi Iv r ised financial instruments
ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at FVOCI on the basis of the facts and circumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS.

The Group has elected to apply this ption for its in equity i

A2 Ind AS mandatorv excentions

A2l Hedge accounting
Hedge accounting can only be apphed prospectively from the transition date to transactions that satisfy the hedge accounting sriteria m Ind AS 109, at l.hat date. Hedging

hips cannot be desi d retrospectively, and the supporting documentatioa cannot be created retrospectiveiy. As a result, only hedging reiationships ‘hat satisfied the
hedge accounting criteria as of 1 April 2016 are reflected as hedges in the Group’s results under Ind AS.

The Group had desxgnated various hedging relationships as cash flow hedges under the prevmus GAAP. On date of transition to Ind AS, the Greup had assessed that all the
desi d hedging relationshi lifies for hedge accounting as per Ind AS 109. C quently, the Group i to apply hedge accounting on and after the date of
transition to Ind AS

A.22 Fstimates
Group’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ina AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous CAAP
(after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there 1s objective evidence that those estimates were in error. .,

ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made n conformity with previous GAAP. The company made estimates for foliowing
iterhs in accordance with Ind A€ at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

* Investment in equity instruments carried at FVPL or FVOCI:
* Investment 1n debt instruments carriéd at FVPL: and
* Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss modet

A.2.3  De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
Ind AS 101 requires a firsi-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 praspectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.
However, Ina AS 101 allows a first-ime adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a da.e of the Group's choosing, provided that the
informaticn needed to apply Ind AS 10¢ to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for
those transactions.

The Group nas elected tc apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospeciively from the date of transition to Ind AS’

A.24 Non-controlling interests
Ind AS 110 requires entities to attribute the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and *o the non-controlling interests.
This 1 needs to b followed even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Ind AS 101 requires the above requirerent to be followed

prospectively from the date of transition.

Consaquently. the group has applied the above requirement prospectively.
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Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 10! requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from previous

GAAP 10 Ind AS.
Particulars As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
(End of last period presented as per IGAAP) (Date of Transition)
Note No.  [As per IGAAP |Adjustments|As per Ind AS |As per IGAAP [Adjustments{As per Ind AS
on transition on transition|
to Ind AS to Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 447.18 (0.60) 447 1S 581.12 - 581.12
Capital work-in-progress 4743 - 47.43 - - -
Goodwill 7 91.84 (91.84) (0.00) 150.83 (150.83) (0.00)
Other intangible assets 97.82 - 97 82 151.85 - 151.85
Financial assets ] - - - - -
i. investments ] 18,176.09 (44.96) 18,131.13 17,697.09 0.00 17,697.09
ii. Loans - - - - - -
iit. Other financial assets 341.84 - 341.84 248.13 - 248.13
Deferred tax assets 26(c) 163 42 t11.44 27486 74.32 192.80 267.13
Non-current tax assets - - - - - -
Other non-current assets 381,79 0.00 38179 387.46 - 38746
Total non-current assets 19,747.38 (25.35) 19,722.03 -_19,290.80 41,98 19,332.77
Current assets
Financial acsets
i. Investments ! 802.94 14.28 817.32 3,423.07 8.94 3,432.01
ii. Trade receivables 4 - 1,253.12 (437.18) 81594 1,046.57 {566.05) 480.52
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 549.94 - 549.93 435.43 - 425.43
iv. Other financial assets 231.45 - 23145 11117 0.01 11118
Other current assets 68.05 - 68.05 3311 - 331
Total current assets 2,905.50 (422.80) 2,482.69 5,049.36 (557.10) 4.492.25
Total assets 22,652.88 (448.15) 22,204.72 24,340.15 515 13) 23,825.03
Equity .
Equity share capital 100287 - 1.002.87 22.29 0.00 22.29
Instrument entirely equity in nature 2 3,592.17 (3.592.17) - 771758 {3,039.63) 4,677.95
Other equity 2,89 16,845.90 1,059.12 17,905.02 15,135.34 2.524.50 17,659.84
Total equity 21,440.94 (2,533.08) 18,907.89 22,875.21 {515.13) 22,360.09
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i, Other financial liabilities 2 - 2,084.87 2.084.87 - - -
Provisions 35391 - 35591 309.81 E 309.81
Employee benefit obligati - - -
Total non-current liabilzti 353.91 2,084.87 2,438.79 309.81 - 309.81
Current Labilities
Financial liatilities .
i. Borrowings - - - 662.50 - 662 50
ii. Trade payables 614.61 - 614.61 260.59 - 260.59
iii. Other financial liabilities 12.88 - 12.88 17.55 - 1755
Provisions 50.46 - 50.46 1)2.92 0.01 112:93
Current tax liabilities - 60.78 0.00 60.78 25.89 - 2589
Other current liabilities 119.31 0.00 11931 75.67 - 75.67
Total current liabilities 858.03 0.00 858.03 1,155.13 0.01 1,155.14
Total liabilities 1,211.94 2,084.87 3,296.82 1,464.94 0.01 1,464.95
Total equity and liabilities 22,652.88 (448,17) 22,204.71 24,340.15 (515,12) 23.825.04
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2017 (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Note No. |As per IGAAP |Adjustments|As per Ind AS
on transition
to Ind AS
Revenue from operations 10,264.58 000 10,264.5%
| Other income 1 136,92 97.38
Total income - 10,401.51 (39.55) 10,361.96
Employee benefit expenses 56.9 6,180.54 (46.39) 6,334.14
Net finance costs 4.08 (0.00) 408
Depieciation and amortisation expense 7 36357 (58.99) 304,58
| Other expenses 4 2,580.52 (129 40) 245102
Total expenses 9,328.71 {234.78) 9,093.92
Profit before exceptional items and tax 1,072.80 195.23 1,268.04
Exceptional ltems . - -
Profit before tax from Continuing operations i.072.80 195.23 1,268.04
Income tax expense -
- Current tax 46€.30 - 466.30
- Defeired tax 3 ‘(8‘) 10) 10.73 (7837)
Total tax expense 377.20 10.73 387,93
Profit for the year 695.60 184.51 880.11
OC; for the year 9 : i33.46 133 46
Total comprehensive income for the year 695.60 317.96 1,013.56!
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Reconciliztion of tots) equity as at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016 {Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Note No. |31 March 2017 |1 April 2016
Total equity as per Indian GAAP 21,440.94 | 22,875.2%
Fair valuation of investments (30.59) 8.95
Provisan for Expected Credit Loss (427.18) {566.05)
{mpairment loss on Goodwill (91.84) (150.83)
Deferred tax impact on Ind AS adjustments 111.44 192.80
Classification into financial liability (2,084.87) -
Total equity as per Ind AS 18,907.90 22,360.09

Reconciliation of other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2017

Particulars 31 March
2017

[Hedge Reserve (net of tax) 156.18

Actuarial gan / loss (34.75)

Tax relating 10 above 12.03

Other Comprehensive income 133.46

In S i h] h for year ended 31 March 2017
Particulars Previous Adjustments  {Ind AS
GAAP
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,170 (11.03) 1,158.67
Net cash flow from investing activities (548) 16.44 (531.08)
Net cash flow from financing activities (3,167 (0.00)|  (3,166.58
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (2,544.40) 541 (2,538.99)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April 2016
3,897.27 8.94 3,906.21
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2017
) 1,352.87 14.35 1,367.22
C: Notes to first-time adoption:
Note 1: Fair valuation of investments
Under the previous GAAP, investments in equily instruments and mutual funds wete classified as long-term i or current i based on the intended holding
period and realisability. Non-current investments were carried at cost less provision for other than temporary decline in the value of such inv Current i were
carried at lower of cost and fair value. Under Ind AS, these i are required to be at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of these investments (other

than equity instruments designated as at FVOCI) have been recognised in retaned earnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in the profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2017. This decreased the retained earnings by Rs. 39.54 lacs as at 31 March 2017 (1 April 2016 - Rs. 8.95 lacs). This has resulted in an decrease in profit for the year
ended 31 March 2017 by Rs.39.54 lacs.

Nofe 2: Prefrence Share Canital
Under Ind AS. The instrument shall be classified as compound instrument with both equity and debt component. Liability compunent is represented by the contractual obligation

to deliver cash or other fi ial asset for p of redemption amount, Equity component s the holders right to receive dividend if declared i.e. di ionary dividend. The
liability component is valued at the present value of the redemption amount. The differential amoun: is recognised towards capital contribution received from parent urder the
head capital reserve. The anding of the di on this comp is r ised in profit or loss and classifizd as interest expense. As on transition date April 1, 2016

Rs.303Y.12 Jacs uansferred 1o retained earnings and as on March 31, 2017 equity component separated from liability component or. conversion of preference share capital from
CCPS to RPS and Rs. 2084.87 lacs transferred to Preference Share Capital (Liability} and Rs 93.87 lacs transferred to Preference Share Capital (Equity).

Note 3: Deferred tax
Under previous GAAP, tax expense in the financial statements was computed by performing line by line addition of tax expense of the parent and its subsidiaries. Deferred tax

have been recognised on the adjustments made on transition to Ind AS.

Note 4: Trade receivables
As per Ind AS 109, the pany is required to apply expected credit loss model for recognising the allowance for doubtful debts. As & result, the allowance for doubtful debts

Increased by Rs. 437.18 lacs as at 31 March 2017 (1 April 2016 - Rs. 566.05 lacs). Consequently, the total equity as at 31 Mauch 2017 decreased by Rs. 437.18 lacs (1 April
2016 — Rs. 566.05 lacs).

Note 5: RSU Plan

Under Ind AS, In case of equity settled share based awards an expense based on the fair value of the award (as on Grant date) is lecogr.ued over the vesting period and a credit
is recognized in equity. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 incteased by Rs. 12.17 lacs (1 April 2016 Rs. Nil). Censequently the total equity
as at 31 March 2017 has been increased by Rs. 12.17 lacs (1 April 2016 Rs. Nil ).

Note 6: R t: benefit
Under Ind AS, remeasurements ie. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the niet interest expense or. the net defined benefit
liability are 1ecognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the

year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 increased by Rs. 22.72la¢s (1 April 2016 Rs. Nil). There is no impact on the total equity as at 31
March 2017 (1 Apnl 2016). N .

Note 7: Goodwill
Under previous GAAP, Goodwill created on merger were amortised over period of 3 years. Under Ind AS. Goodwill is tested for impairment and not amortised over a <pecm4d

period Hence, Goodwill reinstated as on 1 April 2016. As a result of this, Profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 increased by Rs. 58 98 lacs (1 Apnl 2016 decreased by Rs
150 83 facs). Consequently the total equity decreased by Rs. 91.85 lacs (1" April 2016 decreased by Rs. 150.83 lacs).

Note 8: Retained earnings
Retained eamings as at April 1, 2016 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

Note 9: Other comorehensive income
Under Ind AS, all itlems of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. ltems of

income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as “other comprehensive income’ includes remeasurements of
defined benefit plans, foreign exchange differences arising on trarslation of foreign operauons, effective portion of gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments and fair
vatue gains or (losses) on FVOCI equity instruments. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.
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Note 38 : Auditor’s remuneration includes (Rs. in Lacs)
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
For services as auditors, including quarterly audits 12.00 12.00
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.06 0.02
Total 12,06 12,02
Note 39 ; Activities in foreign currency (Rs. in Lacs)
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(i) Earnings in foreign currency
FOB value of exports 10,818.67 10,237.94
Total 10,818.67 10,238
(ii)  Expenditure in foreign currency
Travelling expenses 72.93 70.54
Sales promotion expenses 4.08 31.49
Others 6.01 0.35
Total 83.03 102.38

Note 40: Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The Company is required to spend *18.87 Lacs
on the activities specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013

Note 41: International and domestic transfer pricing

‘The Management is of the opinion that its international and domiestic transactions are at arm's length as per the independeat accountants report for the
year ended March 31, 2017, The Management continues to believe that its international transactions and the specified domestic transactions during the
current financial year are at arm's length and that the transfer pricing legislation will not have any impact on these financial statements. particularly on
amount of tax cxpense and that of provision for taxation.

42. As per Companies (Accounting Stanaards) Rules, 2013 issued by the Central Government, in consultation with National Advisory Committee on
Accounting Standards (NACAS') and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the exient applicable. the carrying value of the asset has
been ieviewed for impairment of assets and there is no impairment of assets. '

Note 43: Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

In terms of Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006, the outstanding to these enterprises are required to be
disclosed. However, these enterprises are required to be registered under the Act. In the absence of the information about registration of the enterprises
under the above Act, the required information could not be furnished.

44. The Company operates in only one business segment, e-publishing services which mainly include editorial services, composition services, media
and related services. All assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are related to their one-segment activities.

45. Previous year figures have been appropriately regrouped/reclassified and rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year's
presentation.

For and on behalf of the Board
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